
IN THE GNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
~ ~ fl~~L-a! eE M£NNESOTA 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) 
) 

Plaintiff, ) 
) 

v. ) 
) 

NAPCO INTERNATIONAL, INC., and ) 
VENTURIAN CORP.,_ ) 

) 
Defendants. ) 

--------------------------------) 
PLEA AGREEMENT 

The United States of America, Venturian Corp. and 

its wholly owned subsidiary, Napco International, Inc. (both 

hereinafter referred to as Napco), by counsel, have engaged in 

plea discussions pursuant to Rule 11 of the Federal Rules of 

Criminal Procedure, and have agreed as follows: 

1. Napco shall waive indictment and plead guilty in the 

United &tates District Court for the District of Minnesota to a 

three count Information charging violations of Title 18, United 

States Code, 371 (Count One); the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, 

Title 15, United States Code, 78dd-1 (Count Two); and Title 26, 

United States Code, 7206(2) (Count Three). The maximum pena1-

ties for Count One, are: $500,000, as enhanced by 18 U.S.C. 

§3571(c) (3); Count Two, $1,000,000; and Count Three, $500,000. 

2. The Information to which Napco will plead is appended 

hereto as Attachment "A". 

3. Pursuant to Rule 11 (e) (1) (C), Fed. R. Crim. P., the 

Government and Napco have agreed that the appropriate sentence 

shall be an aggregate amount of $1 million in satisfaction of its 



criminal and civil fines, penalties, taxes and restitution as 

follows: 

A. Fines 

1. For violation of Count Two, 15 U.S.C. §78dd, a 

fine of $685,000; 

2. For violation of Count Three, 26 U.S.C. §7206(2), 

a fine of $100,000 consecutive to the fine imposed 

on Count Two; and 

3. For violation of Count One, 18 U.S.C. §371, a fine 

of $500,000 concurrent to the fine imposed for 

violating Count Two. 

B. Civil Payments, Restitution, Taxes and Penalties: 

The United States and Napco have also entered into two 

separate civil settlement agreements relating to Napco's civil 

and tax liabilities arising from the matters set forth herein. 

These agreements are appended as Attachments "B" and "C". In 

pertinent part, they provide that Napco will pay: 

1. $140,000 to the Treasurer of the United States in 

full settlement of Napco's civil liability arising 

out of the bribery scheme set forth in the 

Information. The funds will be transferred to the 

Defense Security Assistance Agency for appropriate 

crediting to the Foreign Military Sales account of 

the Republic of Niger; and, 

2. $75,000 to the Internal Revenue Service in full 

settlement of all civil tax liabilities, interest 

and penalties due and owing as a result of the 

bribery scheme set forth in the Criminal 

information. 
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4. If acceDtable to the Court, Napco hereby waives the 

Rule 32(c) (1), Fed. R. Crim. P. presentence investigation and 

report. 

5. Other than as set forth in paragraph "1" and "2" of this 

Agreement, the United States will not prosecute Napco for any 

violation of the United States Code relating to: 

A. the matters set forth in the attached information; 

B. the activities of Richard H. Liebo; 

C. Napco's contracts with Egypt; 

D. Alleged United States Customs violations arising from 
the sale of misidentified radios to the Government of 
Egypt and to other countries; or 

E. FCPA violations arising from the transactions evidenced 
in the documents Napco produced to the Yellow Grand 
Jury. 

While the United States has no present intention of 

continuing the grand jury investigation of Napco International, 

Inc., or Venturian Corp., it is not precluded by this agreement 

from doing so. 

6. The plea and entry of judgement in this case will not 

close or preclude the investigation or prosecution of any 

corporation, not a party hereto, or individual, including any 

current or former Napco employee who may have been or may be 

involved in any of the matters set forth in the Information or in 

any other matter. Napeo shall cooperate fully with the 

Department of Justice during any investigation or prosecution of 

any corporations, not a party hereto, or of any individual[s], 

whether or not they are still employed by Napeo, or any of its 

divisions, subsidiaries or affiliates. The cooperation shall 

include, but not be limited to: 
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A. Providing the United States with access to (i) all 

non-privileged books and records that the United 

States deems necessary to any related investigation 

or prosecution, and (ii) all records previously 

withheld from the grand jury or the government on 

the grounds of privileged attorney-client or work 

product; however by so doing Napco shall not be 

deemed to have waived any applicable attorney

client or work product privileges; 

B. Making available for interview and for testimony 

all Napco employees and officers as the United 

States deems necessary; and 

C. RecoIT~ending orally and in writing that all its 

employees and officers cooperate fully with any 

such investigation or prosecution. 

7. The Department of Justice will advise the Department of 

Defense, Defense Logistics Agency, which is the suspension and 

debarment authority in this matter, of the facts learned during 

the government's investigation of Napco; Napco' s cooperation 

during the investigation; and the importance of this prosecution 

in the government's efforts to'Vlard eradicating fraud in the 

Foreign l<lilitary Sales program. 

8. The Department of Justice also will advise the 

Department of State, Office of Munitions Control, of the facts 

learned during the government's investigation of Napco; Napco's 

cooperation during the investigation; and the importance of this 

prosecution in the government's efforts toward eradicating fraud 

in the Foreign lwlilitary sales program. Upon conviction in this 
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matter Napco may not receive a license to export items on the 

United States Munitions List except as may be determined in 

accordance with Section 38(g) (4) of the Arms Export Control Act 

and the implementing regulations. Since Napeo intends to seek a 

State Department exception from its disqualification, the 

Department of Justice will bring appropriate facts relating to 

this matter to the attention of the Office of Munitions Control. 

9. It is agreed that all "costs" (as that term is defined 

in the Federal Acquisition Regulations at 31.205-47) directly or 

indirectly incurred, for or on behalf of Napca, including, but 

not limited to, all costs in connection with the grand jury 

investigation, and Napco's defense of these matters, this Plea 

Agreement -- including criminal and civil penalties, costs of 

investigation and settlements, and Defense Department and State 

Department related administrative matters -- shall be unallowable 

costs for government contract accounting purposes. These amounts 

shall be separately accounted for by Napco. 

10. It is further agreed that no earlier than forty-five 

(45) days from the signing of this agreement, the United States 

'''ill file the Information referred to in Paragraph "1". Napco 

will enter its pleas of guilty as provided in Paragraph "1" as 

soon thereafter as permitted by the Court. Napco agrees that on 

the date it enters its pleas pursuant to this agreement, it will 

deliver to the United States certified checks in the aggregate 

amount of $1,000,000 as directed by the United States. 

11. If the Court refuses to accept any provision of this 

Plea Agreement neither party shall be bound by any of the 

provisions of the Agreement. Thereafter, (A) the United States 
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may seek to dismiss the Information without prejudice, and (B) 

this Plea Agreement and its attachments, or any portion£hereof, 

will be inadmissible against any party in any proceeding. Napco 

shall not object to such a dismissal, nor the continuation of the 

grand jury investigation. 

12. If Napco A) attempts to withdraw its guilty plea; or 

(B) fails to comply with any of the terms of this agreement; 

including failing to provide complete, truthful and accurate 

information or withholds information, documents or other evidence 

relevant to the criminal information, the United States shall be 

released from its obligations under this agreement and it shall 

be llull and void. However, if such failure is one which may be 

cured, Napco shall have a reasonable opportunity to do so. In 

any of these circumstances, Napco agrees that, subject to 

Paragraph "6 (A) ", any statements, documents or information 

provided by Napco to the United States Department of Justice or 

to federal agencies pursuant to this agreement, may be used 

directly and indirectly against Napco for any purpose, and shall 

be admissible in evidence against Napco in any and all criminal, 

civil or administrative proceedings hereafter brought against 

Napco. Furthermore, Napco shall not assert any claim under Rule 

11 (e) (6), Fed. R. Crim. P. or Rule 410, F. R. Evid., that 

statements, documents or information made by or submitted 

subsequent to the execution of this agreement or in connection 

herewith should be suppressed. 

13. Should the Court refuse to accept the guilty plea or 

any part thereof the United States may indirectly use against 
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information pruviu~d by ~apco pur~uant to this &9reement. 

14. Napco is pleadi~g guilty becaune it is guilty of the 

crimeE set forth in the attachee Criminal Information. 

15. This Fle~ agre8Iiient confirms thE': entire 8g-reement with 

Napco and the United St~tes with respect to the aforesaid guj.lty 

plea, and no other prcmiEes; r~prc~entations or inducements have 

been made to Napeo or it~ attcrneys with regard to such ~uilty 

plea, and nene will be entered into unless in writing and signed 

by all parties. 

DATED this day of March 1989. 

Peter B. Clark 
Senior Litiaation Counsel 
Fraud Section 
Criminal Division 

en 

VENTURIAN CORP. 

BY:~~~~~~~~==~ 
Bradley Herman 
Vice ~ sident and Counsel 

NAPCO INTERNATIONAL, INC. 

By: ~f;Q; 
President , ," 

Allen I. Saeks, squire 

Ro ert L. DeMay, Esg 
Leonard, Street and 
Suite 2300 
150 South Fifth Street 
Minneapolis, Minne~ota 
Counsel for Venturinn 

Corp. and 
Napeo !nt~rnational, Inc. 



OFFICER'S CERTIFICATE 

The undersigned hereby certifies that he is the Assistant 
Secretary of Venturian Corp., a Minnesota corporation; that the 
following resolutions were duly adopted by the Board of Directors 
of said corporation as of the 8th day of March, 1989; and that 
the same have not been altered or repealed and remain in full 
force and effect: 

RESOLVED, that this Corporation, expecting to be 
named as a defendant in a criminal action brought by 
the United States of America in the United States 
District Court for the District of Minnesota, agrees to 
a settlement of that action encompassing the execution 
of a plea agreement among the United States of America, 
this Corporation, and this Corporation's wholly owned 
subsidiary, Napco International Inc., in substantially 
the form presented to the Board of Directors. 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that Bradley S. Herman, Vice 
President of this Corporation, be, and he hereby is, 
authorized to execute such plea agreement for and on 
behalf of this Corporation, in substantially the form 
presented to the Board of Directors. 

IN WITN~SS WHEREOF, the undersigned has hereunto set his 
hand this 1 day of March, 1989. 



OFFICER • S CERTIFICATE . 

The undersigned hereby certifies that he is the Chairman of 
the aoard of Napco International Inc., a Minnesota corporation. 
that the following resolutions were duly adopted by the Board of 
Directors of said corporation as of the 8th day of March, 1989: 
and that the same have not been altered or repealed and"remain in 
full force and effect: 

RESOLVED, that this Corporation, expecting to be 
named as a defendant in a criminal action brought by 
the united States of America in the United States 
District Court for the District of Minnesota, agrees to 
a settlement of that action encompassing the execution 
of a plea agreement among the United States of America, 
this Corporation, and this Corporation's parent, 
Venturian Corp., in substantially the form presented to 
the Board of Directors. 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that Martin J. Leff, President 
of this corporation, be, and he hereby is, authorized 
to execute such plea agreement for and on behalf of 
this Corporation, in substantially the form presented 
to the Board of Directors. 

IN WIT.¥.SS WHEREOF, the unde 
hand thi~ ...:r:!:... day of March, 198 • 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE DISTRICT OF MINNESOTA 

) 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) 

) 
Plaintiff, ) 

) 
v. ) CRIMINAL NO. 

) 
NAPCO INTERNATIONAL, INC., and ) 

VENTURIAN CORP., ) 
) 

Defendants. ) 

-----------------------------) 
INFORMATION 

The United States Attorney charges that: 

COUNT I 

A. INTRODUCTION 

At all times material herein: 

1. The defendant VENTURIAN CORP. (hereinafter VENTURIAN), 

was a corporation organized under the laws of Minnesota with its 

principal offices in Hopkins, Minnesota, and was engaged in, 

among other things, the business of selling military equipment 

and supplies to, among others, certain developing nations. In 

1955, the defendant VENTURIAN changed its name from Northwestern 

Auto Parts Company to Napco Industries, Inc. In May 1984, the 

defendant VENTURIAN reorganized and was renamed Napco 

International, Inc. and continued its business of the sale of 

military equipment and supplies. Following another 

reorganization, in June 1987, the defendant VENTURIAN assumed its 
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pre.ent n&rne and transferred all of its domEriti~atid 

international military equipment sales business aasets to a new. 

wholly ownad, subsidiary with the same name as i~ predecessor 

parent corporation, Napco International, Inc. The defendant 

VBNTURIAN is an issuer as that t~rm is used in ~he Foreign 

Corrupt Practices Act of 1977, 15 U.S.C. 578dd-1. 

2. -The defendant NAPeO INTERNATIONAL, INC. i (hereinafter 

NAPCO), was a corporation organLzed under the law~ of Minne.ota 

with its principal offices in Hopkins, Minnesota, 'nd was enqaged 

in, among other things, the business of sellin1 military 

equipment etld supplies to, among others, certainl developing 

nations. Oefendent NAPCO a wholly owned subsidijary of the 

defendant VENTURIAN, was a domestic concern as that term is 

defined in the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1~77, 15 U.S.C. 

S78dd-2 Cd) (1) • 

3. ~or the purposes of this Information, tije name NAPCO 

shall stand for the following entities for the fol~owing periods: 

Napeo Industries, Inc. 

Napco International, Inc., 
presently known as 
Venturian Corp. 

Napea International, Inc., 
a subsidiary of 
Venturian Corp. 

"January 1983 to lMay 1984 

May 1984 to June 1987 

June 1987 to prasent 

4. The Foreign Corrupt Practices Act was erlacted by the 

Congress in 1977 for the purpose of making it unlawful to make 

payments to foreign government officials to obtai~ or retain 
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business~and to require certain corporations to maintain accurate 

records. 

3. In order to advance the national security of the united 

states and its allies, the Congress authorized the Foreign 

Military Sales (hereinafter FMS) program. Under this program, 

loans were made to certain foreign governments to finance the 

purchase of defense items, that is, defense articles or services 

of United States origin. FMS loan funds were disbursed by the 

Federal Financing Bank (hereinafter FFB) , an agency of the United 

states Department of Treasury. 

4. The Defense Security Assistance Agency (hereinafter 

DSAA) , an agency of the United States Department of Defense, was 

responsible for directing, administering and supervising FMS 

loans. To discharge its responsibilities, the DSAA promulgated 

requirements and issued directives governing FMS loans. The 

pertinent FMS loan requirements and directives provided, in 

essence, that: 

a. FFB funds were to be used to procure defense items 

only under purchase contracts approved by DSAAi and 

b. To ensure FMS loan funds were utilized only for 

the purposes intended by law, and for which each loan was 

authorized, certain certifications were required from the 

contractor or commercial supplier obtaining funds pursuant to the 

FMS loan; 

c. Among the certifications required from contractors 

and commercial suppliers were, at various times material herein, 
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that (i) if DSAA approved FMS financing of a stated dollar value 

of non-U.S. origin components or services, that dollar amount 

would not be exceeded and that, as a condition of receiving U.S. 

Government funds, DSAA would be notified of any changes to the 

identification of non-U. S. items or services; (ii) that the F11S 

financed contract price included only those commissions 

specifically stated in the certificate, and that such commissions 

\vould be paid only to bona fide employees or agencies which 

nei ther exerted or proposed to exert improper influences to 

solicit or obtain the contract as defined in Federal Acquisition 

Regulation 3.401; (iii) that no rebates, gifts or gratuities 

contrary to U.S. law have been or would be given to officers, 

officials or employees of the purchaser, that is, of the foreign 

government borrower of FMS funds, intended to secure the contract 

or obtain favorable treatment under the contract. 

d. The certifications required to be made by a 

commercial supplier were not to contain any statement which was 

false, fictitious or fraudulent. The certifications stated that 

failure to adhere to this requirement subjected a contractor or 

commercial supplier to criminal prosecution for, among other 

things, making a false statement under 18 U.S.C. §lOOl. 

5. Before the FFB may advance FMS loan proceeds to a 

commercial supplier, DSAA, in reliance on a commercial supplier's 

certifications, is required to certify to the FFB that the 

invoices DSAA received from a commercial supplier, and the 

certifications received from a foreign government borrower, are 

in accordance with the loan terms and applicable regulations. 
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6. The Republic of Niger, located in the North Central 

portion of Africa, was a foreign nation qualified to receive FMS 

loan assistance from the DSAA. 

7. Tahirou Barke Doka was, until December 1985, the First 

Counselor of the Embassy of the Republic of Niger in Washington, 

D.C. and, as such, was a foreign official as that term is defined 

in the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977, 15 U.S.C. 

§78dd-1 (b) and §78dd-2 (d) (2) . 

8. Captain Ali Tiemogo was the Chief of Maintenance for 

the air force component of the Ninistry of Defense of the 

Government of Niger, and, as such, was a foreign official as that 

term is defined in the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977, 

15 u.s.c. §78dd-1(b) and §78dd-2(d) (2). 

9. On or about September 24, 1981, September 15, 1982, and 

September 26, 1983, three loan agreements, in the respective 

amounts'of $2.3 million, $2.0 million and $1.2 million, were 

entered into by and between the FFB and the Republic of Niger. 

Pursuant to these loan agreements, as amended, the guarantees of 

the DSAA, and the promissory notes of the Republic of Niger as 

the borrmver, the FFB agreed to lend the aggregate amount of $5.5 

million to the Republic of Niger for the purchase of defense 

i terns consisting of articles and services of United States 

origin. The Government of Niger was permitted to contract with a 

United states supplier for the defense supplies and services it 
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required, subject to DSAA' s prior approval of all purchase 

contracts. 

10. In February 1983, the Government of Niger entered into 

a contract with a West German aircraft maintenance firm, Dornier 

Reparaturwerft GmbH (hereinafter Dornier) to perform maintenance 

on the Nigerien C-130's. However, the Government of Niger had 

insufficient funds to pay for Dornier' s services and Dornier 

sought to affiliate with a .United states contractor so that the 

Government of Niger could qualify for United states Government 

FMS financing. 

11. Beginning in or about June 1983, the defendant, NAPCO, 

acting in cooperation with Dornier began negotiations with the 

Government of Niger for a contract to fur~ish replacement parts 

and to perform maintenance on two C-130 transport aircraft owned 

by the airforce of the Government of Niger, the Escadrille 

Nationale Nigerienne (hereinafter the ENN). 

12. Between December 1983 and March 1987, four purchase 

contracts for aircraft parts and maintenance and for other 

defense items were entered into between the defendant NAPCO and 

the Government of Niger, three of which 'l,17ere approved by DSAA. 

The following chart identifies these contracts: 

Date Napeo No. FMS Case No. Amount 

Dec. 21, 1983 [3324] 18557 AAF-811 $ 681,000.00 

Aug. 20, 1984 [3324J 24818 AAG-821 1,000,000.00 

Aug. 2, 1985 

~!arch 2, 1987 

[3324J 30345 

[3324J 41505 

NK-S-AAR 

Not Approved 

1,550,000.00 

287,315.99 
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B. THE CONSPIRACY (18 U.S.C. 371) 

Beginning in about July 1983 and continuing through about 

September 1987, in the District of Minnesota and elsewhere, the 

defendant NAPCO did unlawfully, willfully and knowingly combine, 

conspire and confederate with other divers persons, known and 

unknown to the united States: 

1. To defraud the United States of America and agencies 

thereof, particularly the Department of Defense, DSAA, the FFB 

and the citizens of the United States, of and concerning their 

right to have the FMS program operate in conformity with the 

statutes, rules and regulations promulgated by the Congress, and 

the Departments of State and Defense, and free from fraud and 

false statements, and to defraud the United States of America, 

and agencies thereof, by impeding, impairing, obstructing, and 

defeating the lawful government functions of the Internal Revenue 

Service' of the Treasury Department in the ascertainment, 

computation, and collection of the revenue: 

tax liability of the defendant, NAPCO. 

to wit, the income 

2. To violate the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977 by 

the use of the mails and of means and instrumentalities of 

interstate commerce corruptly in furtherance of an offer, 

payment, promise to payor authorization of the payment of money: 

(a) to officials of the Government of the 

Republic of Niger, that is, First Counselor 

Tahirou Barke Doka and Captain Ali Tiemogo, both 
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of whom WQre foreign officials as that term is 

used in the Foreign Corrupt Practi~es Act of 1977, 

15 U.S.C. 78dd1 and 

: (b) to persons, that 1 s, Fa touma MaileJ.le Boube 

and Amadou Mailele, both relative~ of Tiemogo, 

while knowing that all Or a portio~ of such money 

would be offered, given or promise~, directly or 

indirectly, to foreign officials, n~mely Barke and 

Tiemogo, 

for the purpose of influencing the acts and decis~ons of Barke 

and Tiemogo in their official capacities, and ind~cing them to 

use their 'influence with the Ministry of Defense: (hereinafter 

MOD) of the Government of Niger and with the ENN sb as to affect 

and influence the acts and decisions of the MOD an~ ENN in order 

to assist the defendant NAPCO and its coconspiratois in obtaining 

and retaining business with the Government of the; Republic of 

Niger, in ~iolation of Title 15, United States Cdde, Sections 

78dd-lCa) (1) and (3) alld 78£f(c) (1)'; and 

3. ~o further violate the Foreign corrupt Pttactices Aot of 

1977 by: 

(a) failing to make and keep books, r~cords, and 

accounts which, in reasonable detail, accurately; and fairly 

reflected the transactions and dispositions of trie defendant 

NAPCO's assets; and 
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(b) failing to devise and maintain a system of 

internal accounting controls sufficient to provide reasonable 

assurances that --

(i) the defendant NAPCO's transactions were 

executed in accordance with management's general 

or specific authorization; 

(ii) the defendant NAPCO's transactions were 

recorded as necessary to maintain accountability 

for assets; and 

(iii) access to the defendant NAPCO's assets 

was permitted only in accordance with management's 

general or specific authorization. 

in violation of 15 U.S.C. §§78m(b) (2) (A) and (B) and 78ff(a) i 

4. To violate Title 18, united States Code, Section 1001; 

and by, among other things, falsely representing to DSAA the 

identitltes of NAPCO's agents, misrepresenting the percentages of 

contract funds paid and to be paid to non-U.S. suppliers and 

filing mis-dated invoices. 

5. To violate Title 26, United States Code, Section 

7206 (2) . 

C. MEANS AND METHODS OF THE CONSPIRACY 

The charged conspiracy was accomplished by the following 

means and methods and in the following manner: 

1. It was a part of the conspiracy that defendant NAPCO, 

and others known and unknown to the United States, would and did 

offer, promise and agree to pay, and authorize the payment to 
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Tahirou Barke Doka, the First Counselor of the Niger Embassy in 

Washington, D.C., and to Captain Ali Tiemogo, of the EEN, both 

officials 0= the Government of Niger, certain bribes, equalling 

approximately 10% of the defendant NAPeO' s net revenues on 

certain contracts for spare parts and aircraft maintenance -

financed by the United states Government -- between NAPeo and the 

Government of Niger, to use their influence in order for the 

defendant NAPeo to obtain and retain said contracts; 

2. It was further a part of the conspiracy that the 

defendant NAPeO, and others, would and did pay bribes in the 

aggregate amount of $130,916.83 to Barke and Tiemogo. 

3. It was further a part of the conspiracy that the 

defendant NAPeO, and others, would and did use various methods to 

conceal the conspiracy in order to insure the continuing 

existence, success and profitability of the conspiracy, including 

but not limited to: 

(a) preparing and using bogus commission agreements, 

reports, requests for payment and other internal NAPeo 

documentation purporting to sho\-, that "commissions" on the 

defendant's Niger contracts had been earned by and paid to bona 

fide agents of the defendant NAPeO; 

(b) creating a fictitious commission agent, known as 

liE. Dave," and opening an account at First National Bank of 

Hopkins, in Hopkins, Minnesota, in the name of this "agent" for 

the purpose of concealing the payments to Niger Government 

officials Tiemogo and Barke; 



- 11 -

(c) using, as the names of the defendant NAPCO' s 

commission agents, the names of Amadou Mailele (hereinafter 

"Mailele") and Fatouma Hailele Boube (hereinafter "Boube"), both 

relatives of Tiemogo, in order to conceal the payment of bribes 

to the Niger government officials Tiemogc and Barke; 

(d) assisting Barke and Tiemogo in their receipt of 

bribes through wire transfers to accounts, opened for the purpose 

of receiving the bribes, at. Credit Lyonnais in Paris, France. 

(e) falsely representing to DSAA that .r-1ailele and 

Boube were the -defendant NAPCO's agents in the Republic of Niger 

when these persons were not its agents, had performed no services 

for NAPCO, and had acted solely as the intdrmediaries for Tiemogo 

and Barke for the purpose of concealing the bribe payments; and 

(f) instructing employees of NAPCO to convey documents 

between NAPCO's offices in Hopkins, Minnesota, and Washington, 
, 

D.C., and between NAPCO's Washington office, the Embassy of the 

Republic of Niger and DSAA's offices in Arlington, Virginia, for 

the purpose of obtaining and retaining purchase contracts with 

the Government of Niger, obtaining payment for goods and services 

provided under purchase contracts and to facilitate the payment 

of the bribes to the Niger government officials, Barke and 

Tiemogo. 

4. It was further a part of the conspiracy that the 

defendant NAPCO and others \vould and did conceal the nature and 

extent of the commissions and agents' fee payments to Barke and 

Tiernogo by causir:g to be filed false and ::raudulent u. S. 
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Corporation Income Tax Returns, Form 1120, for the defendant 

NAPCO for the tax years 1984, 1985 and 1986, which returns 

falsely claimed certain deductions ::or the payment of agents 

cOIn.11lissions. 

5. It was further a part of the conspiracy that the 

defendant NAPCO, and others, would and did cause the FFB to 

advance FMS loan funds by wire transfers to the defendant NAPeo 

by submitting false statements and certifications to DSAA, 

including letters, statements and certificates which (a) falsely 

indicated the identities of NAPCO' s "agents" in Niger and the 

amounts to be paid to them; (b) misrepresented to DSAA the 

percentages of purchase contracts which would be paid by NAPCO to 

a non-U.S. supplier, that is, Dornier, for maintenance of the 

Niger Government's two C-130 aircraft; and, (c) in connection 

therewi th, filed with DSAA intentionally mis-dated invoices 

purporting to show services performed by Dornier under a certain 

purchase contract. 

6. It was further a part of the conspiracy that the 

defendant NAPCO, and others, would and did further conceal the 

offer and payment of bribes to Barke and Tiemogo by aiding and 

assisting in the preparation and presentation of a false and 

fraudulent Form W-8 concerning the "E. Dave" bank account. 

7. It was further a part of the conspiracy that the 

defendant NAPCO, and others, would and did misrepresent to DSAA 

the percentages of purchase contracts which would be paid to a 

non-U.S. supplier, that is, Dornier, for maintenance of the Niger 
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Government's two C-130 aircraft and, in order to fraudulently 

obtain payment for such non-U.S. supplier's services, filed with 

DSAA certain intentionally mis-dated Dornier invoices purporting 

to show services performed under a certain purchase contract with 

the Government of Niger. 

E. OVERT ACTS 

In order to further the obj ects and purposes of this 

conspiracy, the defendant N~PCO and its coconspirators, known and 

unknown to the United States, did commit and cause to be 

committed the following and other overt acts within the District 

of Minnesota and elsewhere: 

1. On or about July 11, 1983, the defendant NAPCO and its 

coconspirators, known and unknown to the United States, mailed 

from Hopkins, Minnesota, to DSAA in Arlington, Virginia, a letter 

which stated that a $50,000. "sales commission" was included in 
, 

the price of a proposed $681,000. purchase contract with the 

Government of Niger. 

2. On or about October 30, 1983, an offic.er of the 

defendant NAPCO traveled to Niamey, the capital city of Niger, 

to meet with Tiemogo and other government officials and to 

discuss NAPCO's proposed contract with the Government of Niger. 

3. On or about December 21, 1983, an officer of the 

defendant NAPCO traveled via commercial airline from Minneapolis, 

Minnesota to Nashington, D.C., to sign a contract, No. 

3324-18557, in the amount of $681,000., with the Government of 

Niger for spare parts and maintenance of two Niger C-130 

<lircraft. 
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4. On or about December 21, 1983, an officer of the 

defendant NAPCO and another NAPCO employee met with Barke, the 

First Counselor of the Embassy of Niger, and a companion at 1789, 

a restaurant in Washington, D.C. 

5. On or about December 22, 1983, in Washington, D.C., an 

officer of the defendant NAPCO and another NAPCO employee visited 

the Niger Embassy to meet with Barke. 

6. On or about December 28, 1983, in Washington, D.C., at 

the direction of an officer of the defendant NAPCO, a NAPCO 

employee met with Barke and delivered to him five French language 

copies of the purchase contract executed on December 21, 1983, 

and five copies of an agreement between NAPCO and Dornier, all 

for transmittal to the MOD in Niger. 

7. On or about January 11, 1984, in Hopkins, Minnesota, 

following receipt of information that DSAA had rejected the 

defendaht NAPCO's proposed purchase contract with the Government 

of Niger, a NAPCO officer mailed a letter from Hopkins, 

Minnesota, to DSAA in Arlington, Virginia, stating that, if NAPca 

chose to subcontract certain C-130 inspections and overhaul work 

to Dornier, Dornier's portion of the prime contract was not 

anticipated to exceed eight to ten percent. 

8. On or about February 15, 1984, in Hopkins, Minnesota, a 

NAPCO officer prepared and signed a NAPCO a commission rate form 

showing "E. Dave" as NAPCO's agent on the firm's first contract 

with the Government of Niger and indicating a commission of "10 

Per Cent on Gross." 
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9. On or about March 14, 1984, in Hopkins, Minnesota, a 

NAPCO officer caused to be prepared and mailed to DSAA in 

Arlington, Virginia, a letter which stated that he was "willing 

to commit that the [Dornier portion] will in no event exceed 

18%." 

10. On or about March 15, 1984, a NAPCO officer traveled 

via commercial airline from Minneapolis, Minnesota, to 

Washington, D.C., to meet. with DSAA representatives for the 

purpose of discussing the Niger purchase contract. 

11. On or about April 4, 1984, an officer of the defendant 

NAPCO placed a telephone call from NAPCO's offices in Hopkins, 

Minnesota to Tiemogo's residence in Niamey, Niger at 

approximately 2:41 p.m. CST. 

12. On or about April 18, 1984, pursuant to the defendant 

NAPCO's submission of invoice No. 332-31092, to the DSAA, the FFB 

wire transferred $340,500. to NAPCO account No.  at 

First National Bank of Minneapolis. This represented an advance 

payment of 50 percent of contract No. 3324-18557. 

13. On or about April 19, 1984, in Hopkins, Minnesota, the 

defendant NAPCO mailed its first invoice, No. 332-31092, under 

contract No. 3324-18557 to its tVashington, D.C. office for 

submission to the Niger Embassy and thence to DSAA for approval 

and to the FFB for payment. 
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14. On or about May 1, 1984, the defendant NAPCO and its 

coconspirators, known and unknown to the United States, caused to 

be prepared and placed NAPCO's files a letter purporting to be 

from ~~adou Mailele which directed that commission payments due 

him be paid to "Mr. E. Dave" at   in 

Washington, D.C. On May 1, 1984, First Counselor Barke resided 

at this address. 

15. On or about May 7, 1984, a telephone call was placed 

from the offices of the defendant NAPCO in Hopkins, Minnesota to 

Niger at approximately 2:32 p.m. CST. 

16. On or about May 11, 1984, the defendant NAPCO paid 

Dornier $63,090.38 for services which Dornier had performed on a 

Niger C-130 aircraft under contract No. 3324-18557. 

17. On or about May 15, 1984, an officer of the defendant 

NAPCO traveled via commercial airline from Minneapolis, Minnesota 

to Washington, D.C. to meet with Barke at the Niger Embassy for 

discussions concerning the purchase contract. 

18. On or about May 16, 1984, the defendant NAPCO and its 

coconspirators, known and unknown to the United States, caused to 

be prepared and placed in NAPCO's files a sales representative 

agreement purporting to be with Mailele as agent for NAPCO's 

Niger business. 

19. On or about May 23, 1984, in Hopkins, Minnesota, a 

NAPCO officer requested an advance commission of $19,510. be paid 

to liE. Dave." 
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20. On or about May 24, 1984, in Hopkins, Minnesota, the 

defendant NAPCO and its coconspirators, known and unknown to the 

united States issued, caused to be issued and delivered to an 

officer of NAPCO a company check, No. 143029, dravm on the 

Security Bank, Harrison, Arkansas, payable to "E. Dave" in the 

amount of $19,510. 

21. On or about May 25, 1984, in Hopkins, Minnesota, the 

defendan1: NAPCO and its coconspirators, know'n and. unknown to the 

united States, caused to be issued and delivered to an officer of 

NAPCO a compan? check, No. 143031, drawn on the Security Bank, 

Harrison, Arkansas, payable to "E. Dave" in the amount of $7,140. 

22. On or about May 25, 1984, an officer of the defendant 

NAPCO personally opened an account, No. , in the name of 

"E. Dave" at the First National Bank of Hopkins, Minnesota. The 

officer then deposited the two NAPCO checks described above, 

totaling $26,650., into the "E. Dave" account. 

23. On or about May 25, 1984, in Hopkins, Minnesota, the 

defendant NAPCO and its coconspirators, known and unknown to the 

United States, mailed and caused to be mailed to a NAPCO employee 

in Washington, D.C., a signature card for the "E. Dave" bank 

account, a non-resident alien exemption certification Form W-8 

and instructions for Barke directing him to complete the forms. 

24. On or about May 29, 1984, a telephone call was placed 

to a NAPCO officer in Hopkins, Minnesota, from an employee of 

NAPCO's Washington office, to discuss the materials relating to 

the "E. Dave" account. 
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25. On or about May 29, 1984, in Washington, D.C., at the 

instruction of the defendant NAPCO and its coconspirators, known 

and unknown to the United States, an employee of NAPCO' s 

~'lashington office visited Barke at the Niger Embassy and 

delivered to him the materials relating to the "E. Dave" account. 

26. On or about May 29, 1984, Dornier issued to the 

defendant NAPCO its invoice No. 38-0216 in the amount of DM 

121,498.70, or approximately $36,145.90, for services performed 

on a Niger C-130 aircraft under NAPCO contract No. 3324-18557. 

27. On or about May 30, 1984, a telephone call was placed 

by an employee of the defendant NAPCO's Hashington, D.C. office 

to the office of a NAPCO officer in Hopkins, l-linnesota, at 

approximately 12:21 p.m. CST for the purpose of discussing the 

delivery of instructions to Barke as to how to fill out the 

"E. Dave" signature card and non-resident alien exemption 
" 

certification on Form W-8. 

28. On or about May 30, 1984, a second telephone call was 

placed by a NAPCO employee from defendant NAPCO's Washington, 

D. C. office to a NAPCO officer in Hopkins, r.1innesota, at 

approximately 12:24 p.m CST, for the purpose of discussing the 

materials which the NAPCO officer had sent to the Washington, 

D.C. office. 

29. On or about May 30, 1984, in Washington, D.C., a NAPCO 

employee met with Barke at the Niger Embassy and presented the 

"E. Dave" account materials to Barke for signature. Barke signed 

the account signature card and Form W-8 in the name of "E. Dave." 
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30. On or about May 30, 1984, a third telephone call was 

placed from defendant NAPCO' s l'lashington office to a NAPCO 

officer in Hopkins, Minnesota, at approximately 12:50 p.m. CST to 

confirm that Barke had completed the forms in accordance with the 

instructions of the NAPCO officer. 

31. On or about May 30, 1984, a NAPCO employee mailed the 

"E. Dave" account signature card and non-resident alien exemption 

on Form W-8 from Washingtqn, D.C., to the NAPCO officer in 

Hopkins, Minnesota. 

32. On or about May 30, 1984, a telephone call was placed 

to Barke's residence in Washington, D.C., from the residence of a 

NAPCO officer in Hopkins, Minnesota, at approximately 9:06 p.m. 

CST. 

33. On or about June 4, 1984, in Hopkins, Minnesota, a 

NAPCO officer prepared a memorandum advising that he was going to 

visit Niger and intended to include a 10 percent commission for 

"our rep" on all offers. 

34. On or about June 5, 1984, in Washington, D.C., the FFB 

wire transferred $120,307.85 to defendant NAPCO's account at the 

First National Bank of Minneapolis. 

35. On or about June 7, 1984, Barke deposited two checks 

drawn on the "E. Dave" account at First National Bank of Hopkins. 

Five thousand dollars was deposited in Barke's Riggs National 

Bank account in Washington, D.C., No. , and $20,000 in 

Barke's Friendship Savings and Loan account, No. , in 

Washington, D.C. 
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36. On or about June 16, 1984, a NAPeo officer traveled to 

Niamey, Niger from Minneapolis, Minnesota, to meet with officials 

of the MOD, including Tiemogo. 

37. On or about June 30, 1984, defendant NAPeo and its 

coconspirators, known and unknown to the United States, issued 

"E. Dave" commission report, No. 7983, in the amount of 

$17,423.93. 

38. On or about July. 3, 1984, the FFB wire transferred 

$46,353.73 to defendant NAPeO's account at First National Bank of 

Minneapolis. 

39. On or about July 20, 1984, a NAPeo employee met with 

Barke and delivered to him invoices for payment of $80,791.41 

concerning contract No. 3324-18557 and requested his assistance 

for expeditious payment through DSAA. 

40. On or about July 25, 1984, from the defendant NAPeO's 

offices in Hopkins, Minnesota a telephone call was placed to 

Tiemogo's residence in Niamey, Niger, at approximately 10:57 a.m. 

eST. 

41. On or about July 30, 1984, the FFB wire transferred 

$171,526.88 to defendant NAPeO's account at First National Bank 

of Minneapolis. 

42. On or about July 31, 1984, the defendant NAPeo and its 

coconspirators, known and unknown to the united states, caused to 

be prepared and placed in NAPeO's files an "E. Dave" commission 

report, No. 8019, in the amount of $22,364.90. 

43. On or about August 7, 1984, a telephone call was placed 

from the defendant NAPeO' s office in Hopkins, Hinnesota, to 
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Tiemogo's residence in Niamey, Niger, at approximately 11:33 a.m. 

CST. 

44. On or about August 8, 1984, in Hopkins, Minnesota, an 

officer of the defendant NAPCO requested a commission payment in 

the name of "E. Dave" for the amount of $13,138.83 for commission 

report Nos. 7983 and 8019. 

45. On or about August 9, 

defendant NAPCO its invoic~ No. 

1984, Dornier issued to the 

38-0325 in the amount of DM 

314,966, or approximately $99,661.40, for services performed on a 

Niger C-130 under NAPCO contract No. 3324-18557. 

46. On or about August 16, 1984, in Hopkins, Minnesota, the 

defendant NAPCO and its coconspirators, known and unknown to the 

United States, caused to be issued and delivered to an officer of 

NAPea a company check, No. 147364, drawn on the Security Bank, 

Harrison, Arkansas, and payable to "E. Dave," in the amount of 

$13,138.83. 

47. On or about August 20, 1984, in Hopkins, Minnesota, the 

defendant NAPCa and its coconspirators, known and unknown to the 

United States, caused to be prepared and mailed o. letter to 

"E. Dave," in Washington, D.C., regarding the August 16, 1984, 

payment of $13,138.83. 

48. On or about August 20, 1984, the Government of Niger 

signed a second contract, No. 3324-24818, in the amount of 

$1,000,000., with defendant NAPCO for, among other things, spare 

parts and maintenance of the Niger C-130 aircraft. 

49. On or about August 20, 1984, the defendant NAPCO and 

its coconspirators, known and unknown to the United States, 
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caused a check, drawn on the Security Bank, Harrison, Arkansas, 

in the amount of $13,138.83 to be deposited in the "E. Dave" 

account at the First National Bank of Hopkins, Minnesota. 

50. On or about August 27, 1984, an officer of the 

defendant NAPCO traveled from Minneapolis, Minnesota to 

Washington, D.C. via commercial airline to meet with Barke at the 

Niger Embassy. 

51. On or about August 28, 1984, in Washington, D.C., an 

officer of the defendant NAPCO and another NAPCO employee met 

with Barke and delivered to him three copies of a new contract, 

No. 3324-24818, in the amount of $1,000,000 for spare parts and 

maintenance for the Niger C-130 aircraft. 

52. On or about October 16, 1984, in Hopkins, Minnesota, 

the defendant NAPCO and its coconspirators, known and unknown to 

the United States, caused to be produced and placed in NAPCO's 
-

files a sales representative agreement by which Amadou Mailele 

was purportedly retained as NAPCO's agent for Niger. 

53. On or about December 10,1984, an officer of the 

defendant NAPCO traveled via commercial airline, from 

Minneapolis, Minnesota to Washington, D.C., to meet with Barke 

and Tiemogo. 

54. On or about December 12, 1984, an officer of the 

defendant NAPCO and another NAPCO employee met Tiemogo at the 

Madison Hotel, in Washington, D.C., to discuss a new contract to 

be awarded to NAPCO during 1985. 

55. On or about January 17, 1985, in Arlington, Virginia, 

DSAA approved =or FMS funding contract No. 3324-24818 between the 

defendant NAPCO and the Government of Niger. 
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56. On or about January 25, 1985, Dornier at the request of 

the defendant NAPCOreissued and transmitted to the defendant 

NAPCO its invoice No. 38-0216 for services performed under 

contract No. 3324-18557. 

57. On or about January 25, 1985, the defendant NAPCO and 

its coconspirators, known and unknown to the United States, 

caused to be produced and placed in NAPCO's files, an agent 

history report entitled "E .. Dave." 

58. On or about January 28, 1985, in Hopkins, Minnesota, an 

employee of the defendant NAPCO was directed by a NAPCO officer 

to prepare and place in NAPCO's files a commission rate slip in 

the name of "E. Dave," relating to NAPCO contract No. 3324-24818, 

and reflecting a "10 percent commission on the gross." 

59. On or about January 29, 1985, in Hopkins, Minnesota, in 

connection with the preparation and submission to the Internal 

Revenue Service of an IRS Form 1099 for "E. Dave," regarding 

payments made in 1984, a NAPCO officer represented to a NAPCO 

employee that "E. Dave is a non-resident alien." 

60. On or about January 31, 1985, Dornier, at the request 

of an officer of the defendant NAPCO, reissued and transmitted to 

the defendant NAPCO in Hopkins, Minnesota, its invoice No. 

38-0325 for services performed under contract No. 3324-18557. 

61. On or about February 25, 1985, in Hopkins, Minnesota, 

an officer of the defendant NAPCO directed another NAPCO employee 

to process through DSAA the Dornier invoice Nos. 38-0325 for 

DM 334,966. and 38-0216 for DM 121,498.70. 
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62. an or about February 28 I 1985, an officer -of the 

defendant NAPca traveling irt-Egypt telephoned a NAPca employep in 

Hopkins, Minnesota to discuss presentation of the reissued 

Dornier invoices to DSAA. 

63. an or about February 28, 1985, in Hopkins, Minnesota, 

an employee of the defendant NAPca prepared a memorandum 

explaining that all of the FMS funds had been exhausted on the 

first contract, No. 3324-18557; that NAPea still owed Dornier for 

work performed under that contract and confirming that a NAPca 

official had suggested that NAPca have Dornier reissue the 

invoices so that they could be presented to DSAA under NAPCa's 

second contract with the Government of N,{ger, contract No. 

3324-24818. 

64. an or about March 4, 1985, from Munich, West Germany, 

Dornier sent a telex message to the attention of an officer of 

the defendant NAPca concerning the "work [which) was performed by 

us half a ye~r ago" on the ENNIs C~130 aircraft. 

65. On or about March 5, 1985, in Hopkins, Minnesota, the 

defendant NAPca and its coconspirators, known and unknown to the 

United States, caused a telex message to be sent to Dornier in 

Munich, ~'Vest Germany, regarding the reissued invoices No. 38-0216 

and No. 38-0325. The telex stated "Payment to you will be done 

immediately after NAPCO gets reimbursement from DSAA." 

66. On or about March 8, 1985, the defendant NAPCO and its 

coconspirators, known and unknown to the United States, caused to 

be prepared and mailed a letter to the Embassy of Niger, in 



- 25 -

Washington, D.C., enclosing NAPCO invoice No. 336-32777 

concerning contract No. 3324-24818, and copies of Dornier 

invoices No. 38-0325 and No. 38-0216. 

67. On or about March 8, 1985, the defendant NAPCO and its 

coconspirators, known and unknown to the United States, caused to 

be prepared and submitted to DSAA, in Arlington, Virginia, in 

connection with purchase contract No. 3324-24818, a commission 

statement reflecting that the contract price included a $50,000. 

commission fee. 

68. On or about March 11, 1985, a NAPCO employee prepared 

an inter-office memo concerning Dornier invoices No. 38-0216 and 

No. 38-0325.' 

69. On or about March 29, 1985, in Hopkins, Minnesota, an 

officer of the defendant NAPCO instructed a NAPCO employee that 

"payment [to Dornier] be made by telex transfer to Germany." 

70. On or about April 15, 1985, in Washington, D.C.! a 

NAPCO employee delivered to the Niger Embassy invoice No. 

336-32970, in the amount of $13,083.62, concerning contract No. 

3324-24818. 

71. On or about April 16, 1985, in Washington, D.C., an of 

the defendant NAPCO met with Barke, delivered to him invoice No. 

336-32970, in the amount of $13,083.62, concerning contract No. 

3324-24818, and requested assistance in obtaining payment from 

DSAA. 
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72. On or about April"18, 1985, the FFB wire transferred 

$135,807.30 from \"Jashington, D.C., to the defendant NAPCO's 

account at First National Bank of Minneapolis. 

73. On or about April 18, 1985, in Hopkins, Minnesota, the 

defendant NAPCO wire transferred $135,807.30 to Dornier in 

Munich, West Germany, for services rendered under NAPCO contract 

No. 3324-18557 and billed by Dornier under the reissued invoices. 

74. On or about May ~3, 1985, an officer of the defendant 

NAPCO traveled via commercial airline from Minneapolis, Minnesota 

to Washington, D. C., where he and t .. vo other NAPeo employees 

entertained a delegation of Niger officials at Le Pavillion 

restaurant in Washington, D.C. 

75. On or about May 14,1985, in Washington, D.C. an 

officer of the defendant NAPCO and two other NAPCO employees met 

with Barke. 

76. On or about May 28, 1985, an officer of the defendant 

NAPCO traveled via commercial airline from Minneapolis, Minnesota 

to Niamey, Niger to meet with officials of the Government of 

Niger. 

77. On or about June 13, 1985, in Washington, D.C., a NAPCO 

employee visited Barke at the Niger Embassy, and delivered 

invoice No. 336-33261 in the amount of $6,297.75, and No. 

336-33244 in the amount $262.70, concerning contract No. 

3324-24818. 

78. On or about June 24, 1985, in Washington, D.C., an 

employee of the defendant NAPCO delivered to Barke at the Embassy 
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of Niger NAPCO invoice No. 336-33285, in the amount of $6,510.00, 

concerning contract No. 3324-24818, and requested assistance for 

payment through DSAA. 

79. On or about July 2, 1985, the FFB wire transferred 

$41,324.98 to the defendant NAPCO' s account at First National 

Bank of Minneapolis. 

80. On or about July 15, 1985, in Washington, D.C., an 

employee of the defendant NAPCO had dinner with Barke and a 

companion at the Jade Budda restaurant. 

81. On or about July 16, 1985, in Washington, D.C., an 

employee of the defendant NAPCO met with Barke. 

82. On or about July 18, 1985, in Washington, D.C., an 

employee of the defendant NAPCO delivered to the Niger Embassy 

invoice No. 336-33452, in the amount of $2,077.54, and invoice 

No. 336-33438, in the amount of $22,214.93, concerning contract 
, 

No. 3324-24818. 

83. On or about July 26, 1985, Amadou Mailele traveled from 

Niamey, Niger to Paris, France to open Credit Lyonnais account 

No. . 

84. On or about July 26, 1985, in Hopkins, Minnesota, the 

defendant NAPCO and its coconspirators, known and unknown to the 

united States, caused a travel agency to issue airline tickets 

for Barke, which charges were billed to a Napco Diners Club 

account. 

85. On or about July 28, 1985, an officer of the defendant 

NAPCO traveled via commercial airline from Minneapolis, Minnesota 
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to Niamey, Niger, to sign a third contract, No. 3324-30345, in 

the amount of $1,550,000, with the Government of Niger for spare 

parts and maintenance of the Niger C-130 aircraft. 

86. On or about July 31, 1985, the defendant NAPCO and its 

coconspirators, known and unknown to the United States, caused to 

be prepared and placed in NAPCO I s files a NAPCO commission 

report, No. 8399, which reflected a commission of $12,024.26 for 

Arnadou Mailele on NAPCO ord~r No. 3329-2887 and 3329-8557. 

87. On or about July 31, 1985, the defendant NAPCO and 

coconspirators, known and unknown to the United States, caused to 

be prepared and placed in NAPCO I s files a NAPCO commission 

report, No. 8400, which reflected a commission of $3,841.46 for 

"E. Dave" on NAPCO order No. 3369-24.818. 

88. On or about August 1, 1985, in Washington, D.C., an 

employee of the defendant NAPCO delivered to the Niger Embassy, 

for submission to the DSAA, invoice No. 336-33413, in the amount 

of $105,853.37 and invoice No. 336-33522, in the amount of 

$6,704.95. 

89. On or about August 2, 1985, the Government of Niger 

signed a third contract, No. 3323-30345, in the amount of 

$1,550,000., with defendant NAPCO for, among other things, spare 

parts and maintenance of the Niger C-130 aircraft. 

90. On or about August 2, 1985, in Hopkins, Minnesota, the 

defendant NAPCO and coconspirators, known and unknown to the 

United States, caused to be prepared and placed in NAPCO's files 

a report in connection with contract No. 3324-30345 reflecting 
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that commissions in the amount of $47,662 had been or \vould be 

paid to Amadou Mailele. 

91. On or about August 2, 1985, in Hopkins, Minnesota, the 

defenda.nt NAPCO and its coconspirators, knovm and unknown to the 

United States, caused to be prepared and placed in NAPCO.'s filesa 

note reflecting a breakdown of costs on contract No. 3324-30345. 

92. On or about August 5, 1985, in Hopkins, Minnesota the 

defendant NAPCO and its co~onspirators, known and unknown to the 

unknown to the United States, caused to be prepared and placed in 

NAPCO's files a letter purporting to be from Amadou Mailele 

directing that payments to "Mr. Dave" be stopped and to commence 

payments to Mailele at the Credit Lyonnais account No. . 

93. On or about August 5, 1985, in Washington, D.C., an 

employee of the defendant NAPCO met with Barke to discuss NAPCO's 

invoices to be presented to DSAA. 

94. On or about August 8, 1985, an officer of the defendant 

NAPCO prepared and caused to be mailed from Hopkins, Minnesota, a 

letter to Barke stating "I have just returned from Niger with 

signed contract." 

95. On or about August 9, 1985, in Washington, D.C., an 

employee of the defendant NAPCO met with Barke and delivered 

copies of contract No. 3324-30345 in English and French versions. 

96. On or about August 12, 1985, in Washington, D.C., an 

employee of the defendant NAPCO met with Barke to deliver invoice 

No. 336-33590, in the amount of $40,423.05, concerning contract 
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No. 3324-24818, and requested expeditious assistance for payment 

from DSAA. 

97. On or about August 14, 1985, in Hopkins, Minnesota, an 

officer of the defendant NAPCO caused to be prepared and placed 

in NAPCO's files a request for check representing an advance 

commission of $37,000. to Amadou Mailele for contract No. 

3324-30345. 

98. On or about Aug~st IS, 1985, an officer of the 

defendant NAPCO advised a NAPCO employee that commissions on 

contract No. 3324-24818 were to be paid to Amadou Mailele, not to 

"E. Dave." 

99. On or about August 15, 1985, in Hopkins, Minnesota, a 

NAPCO employee, acting upon the urgent request of a NAPCO 

official, directed the First National Bank of Minneapolis to wire 

transfer $37,000. to Amadou Mailele's account No.  at 
, 

Credit Lyonnais in Paris. 

100. On or about August 16, 1985, Barke traveled from 

Washington, D.C. to Niamey, Niger for his wedding and subsequent 

honeymoon in Paris, stockholm and London, using tickets charged 

to a NAPCO account. 

101. On or about August 26, 1985, the FFB wire transferred 

$208,433.26 to the defendant NAPCO's account at First National 

Bank of Minneapolis. 

102. On or about August 29, 1985, in Paris, France, Barke 

delivered a letter from Amadou Mailele to Credit Lyonnais 

instructing the bank to transfer the funds to Barke's account, at 
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Banque de Developpement de la Republique du Niger (hereinafter 

BDRN), in Niamey, Niger. 

103. On or about August 30, 1985, the defendant NAPCO and 

its coconspirators, known and unknmvn to the United States, 

caused to be prepared and placed in NAPCO' s files a commission 

report, No. 8448, concerning a commission in the amount of 

$17,734.14, payable to Amadou Mailele under contract No. 

3324-24818. 

104. On or about September 6, 1985, in Hopkins, Minnesota, 

the defendant NAPCO and its coconspirators, known and unknown to 

the United States, prepared a request for payment of an advance 

commission Of $12,000. to Amadou Mailele on contract No. 

3324-24818. 

105. On or about September 6, 1985, the defendant NAPCO and 

its coconspirators, known and unknown to the United States, 

-caused a wire transfer in the amount of $12,000. to be made from 

First National Bank of Minneapolis, to Amadou Mailele's account 

at Credit Lyonnais, Paris. 

106. On or about September 9, 1985, in Minneapolis, 

Minnesota, the defendant NAPCO paid Dornier $22,214.93 for 

services performed and billed by Dornier on contract No. 

3324-24818. 

107. On or about September 9, 1985, CFA 15,597,850 was 

transferred from the Amadou Mai1ele account at Credit Lyonnais in 

Paris, to Barke's account at BDRN in Niamey, Niger. 
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108. On or about September 10, 1985, three ENN officers, 

including Tiemogo, traveled via commercial airline to 

Minneapolis, Minnesota. 

109. On or about September 11, 1985, in Washington, D.C., an 

employee of the defendant NAPCO met with Barke and delivered 

invoice No. 336-33640, in the amount of $42,890.19 and invoice 

No. 336-33708, in the amount of $17,713.95, both concerning 

contract No. 3324-24818, and requested assistance for expeditious 

payment through DSAA. 

110. On or about September 16, 1985, in Hopkins, Minnesota, 

an officer of the defendant NAPCO directed that invoices totaling 

$2,028., representing charges for Barke's honeymoon travel, be 

charged to the Amadou Mailele commission account. 

111. On or about September 16, 1985, in Hopkins, Minnesota, 

the defendant NAPCO and its coconspirators, known and unknown to 

the United States, caused NAPCO's 1984 Corporate Income Tax 

Return, to be prepared and mailed, Form 1120, to the Internal 

Revenue Service at its Ogden, Utah Service Center. 

112. On or about September 17, 1985, in Washington, D.C., an 

employee of the defendant NAPCO visited the Niger Embassy, Office 

of First Counselor, and delivered invoice No. 336-33667, in the 

amount of $34,696.37, concerning contract No. 3324-24818. 

113. On or about september 18, 1985, in Washington, D.C., an 

employee of the defendant NAPCO met with Barke regarding unpaid 

NAPea invoices, including invoice No. 336-33667. 
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114. On or about September 20, 1985, the defendant NAPCO 

issued and mailed its check, No. 163841, in the amount of 

$17,948.60, to Diners Club, Inc. in Denver, Colorado. Of this 

amount, $2,028. was payment for the airline tickets purchased for 

Barke's wedding and honeymoon travel. 

115. On or about September 24, 1985, in Hopkins, Minnesota, 

an employee of the defendant NAPCO drafted a note inquiring as to 

whether NAPCO had a signed commission agreement with 

Amadou Mailele,' and if the agreement with "E. Dave" had been 

cancelled. In response, a NAPCO officer reported that Napco had 

an agreement with Mailele and that the cancellation of "E. Dave" 

agreement had been "taken care of." 

116. On or about September 27, 1985, in Washington, D.C., an 

employee of the defendant NAPCO visited Barke and inquired about 

contract 3324-30345. Barke agreed to call DSAA to seek 
, 

expeditious approval by DSAA. 

117. On or about October 4, 1985, in Washington, D.C., an 

employee of the defendant NAPCO visited and delivered to the 

Niger Embassy invoice No. 336-33803, in the amount of $4,827.80, 

concerning contract No. 3324-24818 and requested assistance in 

obtaining expeditious payment through DSAA. 

118. On or about October 9, 1985, in Hopkins, Minnesota, an 

employee of the defendant NAPCO sent a telex message to Credit 

Lyonnais in Paris, France, requesting that funds be transferred 

from the Amadou Mailele account to an account in Niamey, Niger. 



- 34 -

119. On or about October 11, 1985, in Washington, D.C., an 

employee of the defendant NAPCO delivered to the Niger Embassy 

invoice No. 336-33863, in the amount of $54,319.76, concerning 

contract No. 3324-24818, and requested assistance in obtaining 

expeditious payment through DSAA. 

120. On or about October 15, 1985, the defendant NAPCO and 

its coconspirators, knO\'ln and unknown to the United States, 

caused to be prepared and. placed in NAPCO' s files a sales 

representative agreement for Amadou Mailele. 

121. On or about October 31, 1985, in Washington, D.C., an 

employee of the defendant NAPCO met ''lith Barke, and delivered 

invoice No. 336-34005 in the amount of $33,596.55 in connection 

with contract No. 3324-24818 and requested his assistance for 

expeditious payment through DSAA. 

122. On or about November 12, 1985, in Washington, D.C., an 

employee of the defendant NAPCO visited the Niger Embassy and 

delivered invoice No. 332-33925 in the amount of $685.75 for 

payment through DSAA in connection with contract No. 3324-18557. 

123. On or about November 12, 1985, in Washington, D.C., two 

NAPCO employees met with Barke to discuss NAPCO's payment under 

contract No. 3324-18557. 

124. On or about November 14, 1985, in Washington, D.C., an 

employee of the defendant NAPCO delivered to the Niger Embassy 

invoice No. 332-34005, in the amount of $8,460 to be processed 

for payment through DSAA in connection with contract No. 

3324-18557. 
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125. On or about November 15, 1985, in Washington, D.C., an 

employee of the defendant NAPCO delivered to the Niger Embassy 

invoice No. 336-34097, in the amount of $25,417.40, concerning 

contract No. 3324-24818 to be processed for payment through DSAA. 

126. On or about November 22, 1985, in Hopkins, Minnesota, 

an officer of the defendant NAPCO signed, and caused to be 

delivered to DSAA, a certificate for contract No. 3324-30345 

which reflected that commissions in the amount of $47,662 had 

been or would be paid to Amadou Mailele. 

127. On or about November 30, 1985, in Hopkins, Hinnesota, 

the defendant NAPCO and its coconspirators, known and unknown to 

the United States, caused to be prepared and placed in NAPCO's 

files a commission report, No. 8525, in the amount of $898.90 for 

Amadou Mailele concerning invoices No. 332-34005 and No. 

332-33925 under contract No. 3324-18557. 
, 

128. On or about December 5, 1985, the FFB wire transferred 

$193,810.29 to the defendant NAPeO's account at First National 

Bank of Minneapolis. 

129. On or about December 31, 1985, in Hopkins, Minnesota, 

the defendant NAPeo and its coconspirators, known and unknown to 

the United States, caused to be prepared and placed in NAPeO's 

files a commission report No. 8559 for Amadou Mailele in the 

amount of $28.60 for invoice No. 332-34193 under contract No. 

3324-18557. 

130. On or about January, 6, 1986, an employee of the 

defendant NAPeo delivered to the Embassy of Niger invoice No. 
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336-34199, in the amount of $54,492.14, concerning contract No. 

3324-24818 and requested assistance for payment through DSAA. He 

also presented invoice No. 332-34193, in the amount of $346.00. 

131. On or about January 22, 1986, in Hopkins, Minnesota, 

the defendant NAPCO and its coconspirators, known and unknown to 

the United states, caused to be prepared and placed in NAPCO's 

files a report reflecting that a total of $51,048. had been paid 

to Mailele between August 1985 and Dece~ber 31, 1985. 

132. On or about January 22, 1986, the FFB wire transferred 

$61,325.49 to NAPCO's account at First National Bank of 

Minneapolis. 

133. On or about January 23, 1986, in Washington, D.C., an 

employee of the defendant NAPCO delivered to the Embassy of Niger 

NAPeO invoice No. 332-34005, in the amount of $8,460., under 

contract No. 3324-18557. 

-134. On or about January 29, 1986, in Washington, D.C., a 

NAPCO employee requested assistance from the Niger Embassy in 

obtaining a letter of confirmation from DSAA concerning-contract 

No. 3324-24818. 

135. On or about January 31, 1986, in Hopkins, Minnesota, 

the defendant NAPCO and its coconspirators, knmvn and unknown to 

the United states caused to be prepared and placed in NAPCO's 

files a commission report No. 8590 for Amadou Mailele in the 

amount of $5,625.18 under contract No. 3324-24818. On the 

preceding day, January 30, 1986, DSAA had approved the third 
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NAPCO contract, No. 3324-30345, ~vith the MOD of the Government of 

Niger for FMS funding, in the amount of Sl,550,000. 

136. On or about February 14, 1986, in Washington, D.C., an 

employee of the defendant NAPCO delivered to the Niger Embassy, 

invoice No. 336-34514, in the amount of $20,553.50, under 

contract No. 3324-24818 and requested assistance for expeditious 

payment through DSAA. 

137. On or about March. 6, 1986, a NAPCO officer traveled via 

commercial airline between Minneapolis, Minnesota and \vashington, 

D.C., to meet with a representative of the Government of Niger. 

138. On or about March 12, 1986, the FFB wire transferred 

$89,306.54 to NAPCO's account at First National Bank of 

Minneapolis. 

139. On or about April 30, 1986, in Hopkins, Minnesota, the 

defendant NAPCO and its coconspirators, known and unknown to the 

United states, caused to be prepared and placed in NAPCO's files 

a commission report, No. 8665, for Amadou Mailele in the amount 

of $8,577.17, under contract No. 3324-24818. 

140. On or about May 15, 1986, the FFB wire transferred 

$74,010.91 to NAPCO's account at First National Bank of 

Minneapolis. 

141. On or about May 21, 1986, an officer of the defendant 

NAPCO traveled via commercial airline between Hinneapolis, 

Minnesota and Washington, D.C., to meet with a representative of 

the Government of Niger. 
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142. On or about May 31, 1986, in Hopkins, Minnesota, the 

defendant NAPCO and its coconspirators, known and unknown to the 

United states, caused to be prepared and placed in NAPCO's files 

a commission report, No. 8685, for Amadou Mailele in the amount 

of $1,270.29, under contract No. 3324-24818. 

143. On or about May 31, 1986, in Hopkins, Minnesota, the 

defendant NAPCO and its coconspirators, known and unknown to the 

United States, caused to b~ prepared and placed in NAPCO's files 

a commission report, No. 8686, for Amadou Mailele in the amount 

of $5,311.18, under contract No. 3324-24818. 

144. On or about May 31, 1986, in Hopkins, Minnesota, the 

defendant NAPCO and its coconspirators known and unknown to the 

United States, caused to be prepared and placed in NAPeO's files 

a handwritten letter purportedly from Mailele stating that, as of 

June 1, 1986, Amadou Mailele would no longer represent NAPCO. 

145. On or about June 1, 1986, Fatouma t1ailele Boube 

traveled from Niamey, Niger to Paris, France, where she opened 

Credit Lyonnais account No. . 

146. On or about June 1, 1986, Fatouma Mailele Boube 

traveled from Paris, France to New York, New York, where she 

received certain documents by mail from, and spoke with, an 

officer of the defendant NAPCO on the telephone for the purpose 

of receiving instructions concerning the documents. Thereafter, 

she signed the documents and mailed them from NC\-l York City to a 

NAPCa officer in Hopkins, Minnesota. 
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147. On or about June 1, 1986, the defendant NAPca and its 

coconspirators known and unknown to the United States, caused to 

be prepared and placed in NAPCO's files a sales representative 

agreement for Fatouma Mailele Boube. 

148. On or about June 18, 1986, in Washington, D .. C., an 

employee of the defendant NAPCO delivered to the N~ger Embassy 

invoice No. 336-35230, in the amount of $2,430.28, invoice No. 

336-35249, in the amount of. $19,872.70 and invoice No. 336-35237, 

in the amount of $1,774.20. 

149. On or about June 20, 1986, in Washington, D.C., a NAPca 

employee delivered to the Embassy of Niger invoice No. 336-35301, 

in the amount of $6,088.90; invoice No. 336-35288, in the amount 

of $2,108.09; invoice No. 336-35302, in the amount of $7,637.13 

and invoice No. 336-35265, in the amount of $3,027.46, all under 

contract No. 3324-24818, and requested expeditious payment 

through DSAA. 

150. On or about July 2, 1986, the FFB wire transferred 

$53,159.29 to NAPCO's account at First National Bank of 

Minneapolis. 

151. On or about July 3, 1986, in Nashington, D.C., an 

employee of the defendant NAPca delivered to the Embassy of Niger 

invoice No. 336-35282, in the amount of $2,116.47 and invoice No. 

336-35350, in the amount of $11,650.70, both under contract No. 

3324-24818, and invoice No. 336-35326, in the amount of 

$4,569.73, under contract No. 3369-30345 and requested assistance 

in obtaining expeditious payment through DSAA. 
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152. On or about July 7, 1986, in Hopkins, Minnesota, the 

defendant NAPCO and its coconspirators, known and unknown to the 

United States, caused to be prepared and placed in NAPCO's files 

a memorandum, regarding contract No. 3369-30345, which indicated 

that the commission payable on the contract "may be 10 percent -

$47,000 from FMS as declared and the balance from NAPCO's general 

corporate funds." 

153. On or about July. 7, 1986, in Washington, D.C., an 

employee of the defendant NAPCO delivered to the Embassy of Niger 

invoice No. 336-35376, in the amount of $1,707.18, concerning 

contract No. 3324-30345. 

154. On or about On or about July 7, 1986, in Hopkins, 

Minnesota, the defendant NAPCO and its coconspirators, known and 

unknown to the United States, caused to be prepared and placed in 

NAPCO's files a request for a voucher check in the amount of 

$20,000. for a payment to Fatouma Mailele Boube. 

155. On or about July 8, 1986, in Hopkins, Minnesota, an 

officer of the defendant NAPCO advised a NAPCO employee that the 

$20,000. advance in commission payments for Boube was "for future 

business" in Niger. 

156. On or about July 9, 1986, in Hopkins, Minnesota, the 

defendant NAPCO and its coconspirators, knmvn and unknown to the 

United States, caused the First National Bank of Minneapolis to 

wire transfer $20,000. to Boube's account No.  at Credit 

Lyonnais in Paris. 
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157. On or about July 11, 1986, in vJashington, D.C., an 

employee of the defendant NAPCO delivered to the Embassy of Niger 

invoice No. 336-35390, in the amount of ~1,670.59, and requested 

expeditious payment through DSAA. 

158. On or about July 14, 1986, in Washington, D.C., an 

employee of the defendant NAPCO delivered to the Embassy of Niger 

invoice No. 336-35279, in the amount of $362.78 concerning 

contract No. 3324-24818, an~ requested payment through DSAA. 

159. On or about July 18, 1986, in Washington, D.C., an 

employee of the defendant NAPCO delivered to the Embassy of Niger 

invoice No. 336-35448, in the amount of $3,101.44, under contract 

No. 3324-30345 for payment through DSAA. 

160. On or about July 28, 1986, in Washington, D.C., an 

employee for the defendant NAPCO delivered to the Embassy of 

Niger invoice No. 332-35455, in the amount of $1,953.59, under 

contract No. 3324-18557 and requested payment through DSAA. 

161. On or about July 29, 1986, in Washington, D.C., an 

employee of the defendant NAPCO delivered to the Embassy of Niger 

invoice No. 336-34840, in the amount of $15,878.43, under 

contract No. 3324-24818 and requested payment through DSAA. 

162. On or about July 31, 1986, in Washington, D.C., an 

employee of the defendant NAPCO delivered to the Embassy of Niger 

invoice No. 336-35497, in the amount of $30,764.03, and invoice 

No. 336-35487, in the amount of $7,783.90, under contract No. 

3324-30345. 
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163. On or about August 4, 1986, in Washington, D.C., an 

employee of the defendant NAPCO delivered to the Embassy of Niger 

invoice No. 336-34840, in the amount of $15,878.43, under 

contract No. 3324-24818. 

164. On or about August 5, 

$51,885.52 to NAPCO I S account 

Minneapolis. 

1986, the FFB wire transferred 

at First National Bank of 

165. On or about Augu~t 7, 1986, in Washington, D.C., an 

employee of the defendant NAPCO visited the Embassy of Niger and 

requested assistance in resubmitting bills for invoice Nos. 

336-34963 and 336-34964. 

166. On or about August 11, 1986, in Washington, D.C., an 

employee of the defendant NAPCO delivered to the Embassy of Niger 

documents concerning contract No. 3324-24818 and requested 

assistance for expeditious payment through DSAA and proposed a 

contract for the use of $2.5 million of united States Military 

Assistance Program funds allocation for Fiscal Year 1987. 

167. On or about August 13, 1986, in Washington, D.C., an 

employee of the defendant NAPCO delivered to the Embassy of Niger 

invoice No. 336-35544, in the amount of $9,048.46, under contract 

No. 3324-30345 and requested assistance for expeditious payment 

through DSAA. 

168. On or about August 21, 1986, in Washington, D.C., an 

employee of the defendant NAPCO delivered to the Embassy of Niger 

invoice No. 336-35624, in the amount of $2,867.55 under contract 

No. 3324-30345 and requested submittal to DSAA for payment. 
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169. an or about August 25, 1986, in Washington, D.C., an 

employee of the defendant NAPca delivered to the Embassy of Niger 

invoice No. 336-35662, in the amount of $2,887.05, under contract 

No. 3324-30345 for payment through DSAA. 

170. an or about August 29, 1986, in Hopkins, Minnesota, the 

defendant NAPca and its coconspirators, known and unknmvn to the 

United States, caused to be prepared and placed in NAPCa's files 

a commission report for the Boube account in the amount of 

$1,899.15, concerning contract No. 3324-30345. 

171. an or about September 15, 1986, the defendant NAPca and 

its coconspirators, known and unknown to the United States, 

caused NAPCa's 1985 Corporate Income Tax Return, Form 1120, to be 

prepared and mailed to the Internal Revenue Service at its 

Andover, Massachusetts Service Center. 

172. an or about September 26, 1986, the FFB wire 
, 

transferred $101,264.64 to NAPCa's account at First National Bank 

of Minneapolis. 

173. an or about September 30, 1986, in Hopkins, Minnesota, 

the defendant NAPCa and its coconspirators, known and unknown to 

the United States, caused to be prepared and placed in NAPCa's 

files a commission report for Fatouma Mailele Boube, in the 

amount of $4,772.83, under contract No. 3324-24818. 

174. an or about September 30, 1986, in Hopkins, Minnesota, 

the defendant NAPca and its coconspirators, known and unknown to 

the United States, caused to be prepared and placed in NAPCa's 
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files a commission report for Fatouma Maile1e Boube, in the 

amount of $1,980.84, under contract No. 3324-30345. 

175. On or about October 24, 1986, the FFB wire transferred 

$15,878.43 to NAPCO' s account at First National Bank of 

Minneapolis. 

176. On or about October 29, 1986, in Hopkins, Minnesota, an 

officer of the defendant NAPCO requested an advance commission 

for Fatouma Mai1e1e Boube in the amount of $20,000. under 

contract No. 3324-30345. 

177. On or about October 31, 1986, in Hopkins, Minnesota, 

the defendant NAPCO and its coconspirators, known and unknown to 

the United States, caused the First Bank of Minneapolis to wire 

transfer $20,000. to Fatouma Mailele Boube's Credit Lyonnais 

account, No.  in Paris. 

178. On or about October 31, 1986, in Hopkins, Minnesota, 

the defendant NAPCO and its coconspirators, known and unknown to 

the United States, caused to be prepared and placed in NAPCO's 

files a commission report for Fatouma Mailele Boube, in the 

amount of $1,286.59, under contract No. 3324-24818. 

179. On or about November 5, 1986, an officer of the 

defendant NAPCO traveled via commercial airline from Minneapolis, 

Minnesota to iHamey, Niger to meet with officials of the 

Government of Niger, including Tiemogo. 

180. On or about November 4, 1986, in Hopkins, Minnesota, 

the defendant NAPCO and its coconspirators, known and unknown to 

the United States, caused to be prepared and mailed a letter to 
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the First National Bank of Minneapolis confirming the instruction 

to wire transfer $20,000. to Fatouma Mailele Boube's account at 

Credit Lyonnais, in Paris. 

181. On or about December 1, 1986, the FFB wire transferred 

$75,680.98 to NAPCO' s account at First National Bank of 

Minneapolis. 

182. On or about December 23, 1986, the FFB wire transferred 

$89,367.59 to NAPeO' s acc~mnt at First National Bank of 

Minneapolis. 

183. On or about January 21, 1987, in Hopkins, Minnesota, 

the defendant NAPeo and its coconspirators, known and unknown to 

the United States, caused to be prepared and placed in NAPeo's 

files an agent history report of payments to "E. Dave" in the 

amount of $39,788.83. 

184. On or about February 23, 1987, the FFB wire transferred 

-$223,560.42 to NAPeO' s account at First National Bank of 

Minneapolis. 

185. On or about February 27, 1987, the FFB wire transferred 

$175,727.76 to NAPeO' s account at First National Bank of 

Minneapolis. 

186. On or about March 2, 1987, in Washington, D.C., the 

Government of Niger signed a fourth contract with NAPeO, No. 

3324-41505, in the amount of $287,315.99. 

187. On or about March 6,1987, in Hopkins, Minnesota, 

defendant NAPCO paid Dornier $223,560.42 for services rendered 

and billed by Dornier under contract No. 3324-30345. 
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188. On or about March 16, 1987, the FFB wire transferred 

$80,998.30 to NAPCO' s account at First National Bank of 

Minneapolis. 

189. On or about April 21, 1987, the FFB wire transferred 

$81,144.62 to NAPCO' s account at First National Bank of 

Minneapolis. 

190. On or about May 11, 1987, the FFB wire transferred 

$57,313.35 to NAPCO's acq:mnt at First National Bank of 

Minneapolis. 

191. On or about May 13, 1987, Barke sent a telex to a NAPCO 

official in Hopkins, Hinnesota, informing him of his plans to 

visit the United States during the period May 22 through May 28, 

1987. 

192. On or about May 13, 1987, an officer of the defendant 

NAPCO replied to Barke via telex stating that Barke should "phone 

when you arrive USA for discussions." 

193. On or about May 20, 1987, in Hopkins, Minnesota, an 

officer of the defendant approved the purchase of a prepaid round 

trip ticket for Tiemogo to travel via commercial airline from San 

Antonio, Texas to Washington, D. C., to be charged to the 

Arnadou Mailele commission account. 

194. On or about May 22, 1987, Tiemogo traveled via 

commercial airline from San Antonio, Texas to Washington, D.C. 

195. On or about May 25, 1987, in Washington, D.C., an 

officer of the defendant NAPCO met with Tiemogo and Barke at a 

Holiday Inn, on Connecticut Avenue, Washington, D.C. 
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196. On or about Ju1i' 31, 1987, in Hopkins, Minnesota, the 

defendant NAPCO and its coconspirators, knmvn and unknown to the 

Uni ted States, caused to be prepared and mailed to the DSAA in 

Arlington, virginia, a certification \'lhich indicated that 

Fatouma Mailele Boube would be the recipient of commissions in 

the amount of $14,366. under NAPCO purchase contract No. 

3324-41505. 

197. On or about Augus.t 4,1987, in Hopkins, Minnesota, the 

defendant NAPCO and its coconspirators, known and unknown to the 

Uni ted States, caused to be prepared and mailed to DSAA in 

Arlington, Virgina, a letter representing that the Dornier 

portion under NAPCO's contract with the Government of Niger would 

not exeed 18 percent. 

198. On or about September 15, 1987, the defendant NAPCO and 

its coconspirators, known and unknown to the united States, 

caused NAPCO's 1986 Corporate Income Tax Return, Form 1120, to be 

prepared and mailed to the Internal Revenue Service at its 

Andover, Massachusetts Service Center. 

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 

371. 

COUNT TWO 

1. Paragraphs A.1 through 12 and E.lthrough 198 of Count 

One of this Information are hereby incorporated by reference and 

realleged as though set forth in full herein. 
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2. On or about May 25, 1984, in the Di6tric~ of Minne~ota, 

the defendant, NAPCO, an issuer as that term is usbd in lS U.S.C. 

S78dd-l (a), used and caused the use of the mails ~that is, the 

mailing of a signature card and instructions frbm Hopkins, 

Minnesota to Washin9ton, D.C., corruptly in furtHerance of an 

offer, promise to pay and authorization of the pa~ent of money, 

that is, approximately ten percent (10%) of contracts between the 

defendant NAPCO and the Government of the Republiq of Niger, and 

the payment of the first installment of those funds, to foreign 

officials Tahirou Barke boka and Captain Ali Tie$:logo for the 

purpose of influencing the acts and decisions 0:4 Barke and 

Tiemogo in. their official capacity and inducing th~m to use their 

influence with the Ministry of Defense of the Govetnment of Niger 

so as to affect and influence the acts and decislons of said 

Ministry o£ Defense in order to obtain and retaln purchase 

contracts for aircraft spare parts and maintenanc~ for defendant 

NAPCO. 

All in violation of Title 15,· united states ¢ode, Sections 

7sdd-l (a) (1) and (3), 78dd-1 (b) and 78ff(c) (1); a:nd Title 18, 

United States Code, Section 2. 
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COUNT THREE 

1. Paragraphs A.l through 12 and E.l through 198 of Count 

One of this Information are hereby incorporated by reference and 

realleged as though set forth in full herein. 

2. On or about September 16, 1985, in the District of 

Minnesota, the defendant NAPCO, did willfully aid, assist in, and 

procure, counsel, and advise the preparation and presentation to 

the Internal Revenue Service of a U.S. Corporation Income Tax 

Return, Form 1120, of NAPCO INTERNATIONAL, INC., and 

subsidiaries, for the calendar year 1984, which was false and 

fraudulent as to a material matter, in that it represented that 

NAPCO was entitled under the provisions of the Internal Revenue 

Code to claim deductions for sales commission, whereas, as the 

defendant then and there well knew and believed the U. S. 

Corpora tion Income Tax Return contained in it deductions for 

bribes to foreign officials in violation of the Foreign Corrupt 

Practices Act of 1977, in the amount of $39,788.83, which under 

provisions of the Internal Revenue Code were non-deductible, 

non-allowable expenses. 
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All in violation of Title 26, united States Code, Section 

7206(2) . 

Dated: , 1989 

Respectfully submitted, 

JEROME G. ARNOLD 
united States Attorney 

By: 

Theodore S. Greenberg 
Deputy Chief, Fraud Section 

Peter B. Clark 
Senior Litigation Counsel 

Fraud Section 
Criminal Division 
u.S. Department of Justice 
Post Office Box 28188 
Central Station 
Washington, D.C. 20038 
(202) 786-4363 





SETTLEMEHT AGRBEMENT 

%. partie. 

1. This Settlement Agreement is made between Napco 

International Inc., based in Hopkins, Minnesota, on behalf o~ 

itselr and its affiliated corporations -- including without 

limitation its parent Venturian Corporation -- and their 

predecessors and successors (hereinafter collectively referred to 

as Napco), and the united Stat •• of America. 

IX. Reoitall 

2. Napco entered into three contracts with the Ministry of 

Oefense of the Republic of Niger that, among other things, 

provided for maintenance and spare parts for two C-130 aircraft 

of t~e Nigerian Air Force. On the part of Niger, these contracts 

were financed with loans provided by the United states Government 

acting through the Federal Financing Bank as app~oved and 

guaranteed by the Defense Security Assistance Agency (DSAA) 

pursuant to the Foreign Military Sales program. 

3. In connection with these contracts, Napeo improperly 

paid a total of $130,916.83, first to an official of the RepUblic 

of Niger and then to two persons related tc an officer in the 

Nigerian Air Force. 

4. The United states Department of Justice has conducted 

an investigation of possible criminal violationQ by Napco with 

respect to matters set forth in the attached Schedule. 

Simultaneously, with the execution of this civil Settlement 



Agreement, Napeo is executing a separate Plea Agreement with the 

united states relating to the criminal sanctions pertaining to 

Napea's conduct (hereinafter the Plea Agreement), and a separate 

settlement agreement regarding any actual or potential civil 

liability Napco may have under the Internal Revenue Code, Title 

26, United states Code, in connection with the foregoinq 

payments. 

5. Except as expressly indicated below, Napea and the 

Untied States mutually wish to resolve all actual and potential 

civil disputes between them regarding conduct of Napeo in 

connection with the matters investigated .S Bet forth in the 

attached schedUle. 

Accordingly, in consideration of the mutual promises ~nd 

obligations of this Settlement Agreement, the parties agree and 

covenant as follows: 

III. Terms ot ~qre'.'nt 

6. Conditioned upon the acceptance of the guilty plea by 

the United States District Court for the District of Minneaota as 

contemplated by the Plea Agreement executed by the parties 

contemporaneously herewith, Napeo shall pay to the Treasurer o~ 

the United states One Hundred Forty Thousand Dollars ($140,000) 

by delivering that amount to the Director, Commercia~ Litigation 

Branch, Civil Division, Department of Justice, or his designee, 

on the date of the acceptance of the guilty plea. 
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7. Conditioned only upon receipt of the payment specified 

above in paragraph 6, the United states hereby releases and 

discharges, and agrees to refrain forever from instituting, 

prosecuting or maintaining, any civil action against Napeo for 

any and all civil claims, claims for civil penalties, darnagee and 

civil causes of action that the Untied states now has, has had or 

may hereafter have against Napco under common or statutory law by 

reason of any conduct (whether action or failure to act) of Napco 

with respect to the matters investigated as part of the criminal 

investigation as set forth in the attached schedule, provided, 

that the release contained in this Settlement Agreement shall not 

release, settle or affect any common law or statutory olaims, 

including claims under the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. S§ 3729-

32, that the United states has or may have involving defective 

parts or any express or implied product liability warranty or tor 

late~t defects under the inspection clause of any Government 

contract or subcontract; provided ~urtber, that the releaso 

contained in this Settlement Agreement shall not release, settle, 

or affect any claims that the United States has or may have 

against entities or persons other than Napco as defined in 

paragraph 1 of this Settlement Agreement: provided furth9~, that 

the release contained in this settlement Agreement shall not 

release, settle, or affect any administrative suspension or 

debarment action; and provided turthe~, that the release 

contained in this Settlement Agreement shall not release, settle 

or atfect any claims that the United states has or may have 
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arising under the Internal Revenue Code , Title 26, United states 

Code, such matters being the subject of a separate settlement 

agreement being entered into between Napeo and the United states 

simultaneously with this Settlement Agreement and the Plea 

Agreement. 

S. This settlement Agreement represents and expresses the 

entire agreement betwaen the parties with respect to the subject 

matter or this Settlement Agreement, and there are no other 

agreements, understandings, representations, warranties, 

inducements or consideration, except as expressly recited herein. 

9. This Settlement Agreement is entered into tor the 

purposes ot compromise, and neither the fact of this Settlement 

Agreement nor any of its provisions shall constitute an admission 

or be utilized as such by any party, exeept to prove and enforce 

the terms of this Settlement Aqreement. 

,10. The provisions of this Settlement Agree.ent shall be 

binding upon the parties to it and upon their SUccessors and 

aSsigns. 

11. This Settlement Agreement is executed in two identical 

originals, and each of them shall be of the same force and effect 

at law as an original. 
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12. This Settlement Agreement shall become effective upon 

the later date o~ its execution by the two parties listed below. 

Dated: 

- 5 -

NAPeo INTERNATIONAL INC. 

By ~TrI 
Mart n !..eff 
It.s President 

,/ 

Division 



SCHEDULE OF MATTERS INVESTIGATED 

1. The matters alleged in the Information attached, and 

to be filed pursuant, to the Plea Agreement; 

2. The activities of Richard H. Liebo; 

J. Napco's conduct from January 1, 1981, to September 22, 

1987, with respect to its contracts with Egypt; and 

4. Violations or the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act arising 

from the transactions prior to September 22, 1987, that 

are evidenced in the documents Napco produced to the 

Yellow Grand Jury. 
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EXHIBiT e. -
CLOSING AGREEMENT OF FINAL DETERMINATION COVERING 

TAX LIABILITY AND SPECIFIC MATTERS 

Pursuant to Section 7121 of the Internal Revenue Code, 
Venturian Corp. and its wholly owned subsidiary, Napco 
International Inc. (hereinafter collectively referred to as 
"NAPCO"), corporations organized under the laws of Minnesota, 
with their principal offices at 1600 Second Street South, 
Hopkins, Minnesota 55343, and C.D. Switzer, District Director, 
Internal Revenue Service, St. Paul, Minnesota, hereby make the 
following closing agreement: 

WHEREAS, NAPCO has been the subject of a grand jury 
investigation in the District of Minnesota, and 

WHEREAS, the investigation related to potential violationS" 
of 18 U.S.C. § 371 (multiple object conspiracy), 15 U.S.C. § 78dd 
and 26 U.S.C. § 7206 in connection with the sale of military 
equipment to the Government of Niger, and 

WHEREAS, said contracts to purchase military equipment were 
funded as Foreign Military Sales under the United States FMS 
program administered by the United States Department of Defense, 
and 

WHEREAS, it is alleged that NAPCO, an officer of NAPCO and 
representatives of the Government of Niger engaged in a scheme 
whereby funds were paid by NAPCO to the representatives of the 
Government of Niger as inducements for awarding of said contracts 
thereby defrauding the United States Defense Department, and 

WHEREAS, it is further alleged that the inducements were 
utilized in determining United States taxable income of NAPCO 
thereby defrauding the United States Treasury, and 

WHEREAS, NAPCO and the United States Department of Justice 
have entered into plea negotiations in settlement of the criminal 
charges, and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the plea negotiations, NAPCO will 
further pay to the United States Treasury the sum of $215,000.00 
in settlement of the civil claims of the United States, and 

WHEREAS, $75,000.00 of the civil settlement amount is to be 
allocated to the Internal Revenue Service and considered as 
payment of tax liabilities arising from the subject transactions, 

NOW IT IS HEREBY DETERMINED AND AGREED FOR FEDERAL TAX 
PURPOSES THAT: 

(1) 
effective 
with the 
Justice. 

This Agreement shall not enter into force and become 
until such time as NAPCO enters a guilty plea in accord 
Plea Agreement negotiated with the Department of 



(2) The sum of $75,000.00 shall, upon receipt be applied 
toward satisfaction of all income tax liabilities and interest of 
NAPCO for the years 1984, 1985 and 1986 arising from or related 
to the subject transactions, in the discretion of the District 
Director, St. Paul, Minnesota, and in accordance with the 
Internal Revenue Code. 

(3) Upon execution of this Agreement and receipt of the 
said $75,000.00, the Internal Revenue Service shall forever 
discharge, release and extinguish all claims for civil tax 
liabili ties, interest and penal ties arising from or related to 
the subject transactions. 

WHEREAS, the determinations set forth above are hereby 
agreed to by said taxpayers; 

NOW THIS CLOSING AGREEMENT WITNESSETH, that the said 
taxpayers and said District Director, Internal Revenue Service, 
St. Paul, Minnesota, hereby mutually agree that the 
determinations set forth shall be final and conclusive subject, 
however, to reopening in the event of fraud, malfeasance or 
misrepresentation of a material fact, and provided that any 
change or modification of applicable statutes or tax conventions 
will render this Agreement ineffective to the extent that it is 
dependent upon such statutes or tax conventions. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the above parties have subscribed their 
names to these presents in triplicate. 

Signed this day of , 1989. --------------------

-2-

VENTURIAN CORP. 

By 
Its 

NAPCO INTERNATIONAL INC. 

By 
Its 

DISTRICT DIRECTOR 
INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE 
St. Paul, Minnesota 
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